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one person in the local market of such 
station and has failed to meet its bur-
den of proving one of the defenses 
under § 1.6005 (a)(2) through (a)(4) with 
respect to such retransmission, the 
Commission shall: 

(a) Make a finding that the satellite 
carrier violated 47 U.S.C. 325(b)(1) with 
respect to that station; and 

(b) Issue an order, within forty-five 
(45) days after the filing of the com-
plaint, containing— 

(1) A cease-and-desist order directing 
the satellite carrier immediately to 
stop making any further retrans-
missions of the television broadcast 
station to any person within the local 
market of such station until such time 
as the Commission determines that the 
satellite carrier is in compliance with 
47 U.S.C. 325(b)(1) with respect to such 
station; 

(2) If the satellite carrier is found to 
have violated 47 U.S.C. 325(b)(1) with 
respect to more than two television 
broadcast stations, a cease-and-desist 
order directing the satellite carrier to 
stop making any further retrans-
mission of any television broadcast 
station to any person within the local 
market of the stations identified in the 
cease-and-desist order, until such time 
as the Commission, after giving notice 
to the station, determines that the sat-
ellite carrier is in compliance with 47 
U.S.C. 325(b)(1) with respect to such 
stations; and 

(3) An award to the complainant of 
that complainant’s costs and reason-
able attorney’s fees. Such award shall 
be made only after the complainant 
submits appropriate documentation in 
support of its request. 

(c) Any cease-and-desist order issued 
hereunder shall include a statement of 
findings and the grounds therefor, shall 
specify the effective date of the order, 
and shall be served by the Commission 
upon the satellite carrier to which such 
order is directed.

§ 1.6010 Reporting of remedial meas-
ures. 

Any satellite carrier found to have 
violated Section 47 U.S.C. 325(b)(1) 
shall, upon receipt of the cease-and-de-
sist order, immediately take all nec-
essary steps to comply with the stat-
ute. Within two (2) days of receipt of 

the cease-and-desist order, the satellite 
carrier shall notify the Secretary of 
the Commission of steps taken to com-
ply with the statute by written submis-
sion. The submission certified by the 
satellite carrier’s chief executive offi-
cer shall also contain a copy of the per-
tinent cease-and-desist order, and shall 
be delivered to the Secretary of the 
Commission by means of one com-
monly used overnight delivery service, 
in addition to a copy delivered by 
United States mail.

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 65 FR 10721, Feb. 
29, 2000, § 1.6010 was added. This section con-
tains information collection and record-
keeping requirements and will not become 
effective until approval has been given by 
the Office of Management and Budget.

§ 1.6011 Effective date. 

The rules in section 1.6000 through 
section 1.6009 shall become effective 
May 30, 2000. Section 1.6010 contains in-
formation collection requirements that 
are not effective until approved by the 
Office of Management and Budget. The 
effective date for this section will be 
announced by the Commission in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER.

§ 1.6012 Sunset provisions. 

No complaint may be filed under this 
rule section after December 31, 2001. 
This rule subpart shall continue to 
apply to any complaint filed on or be-
fore such date. See 47 U.S.C. 325 (e)(12).

Subpart V—Implementation of 
Section 706 of the Tele-
communications Act of 1996; 
Commission Collection of Ad-
vanced Telecommunications 
Capability Data

SOURCE: 65 FR 19684, Apr. 12, 2000; 65 FR 
24654, Apr. 27, 2000, unless otherwise noted.

§ 1.7000 Purpose. 

The purpose of this subpart is to set 
out the terms by which certain com-
mercial and government-controlled en-
tities report data to the Commission 
concerning the deployment of advanced 
telecommunications capability, defined 
pursuant to 47 U.S.C. 157 as ‘‘high-
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speed, switched, broadband tele-
communications capability that en-
ables users to originate and receive 
high-quality voice, data, graphics, and 
video telecommunications using any 
technology,’’ and the deployment of 
services that are competitive with ad-
vanced telecommunications capability.

§ 1.7001 Scope and content of filed re-
ports. 

(a) Definitions. Terms used in this 
subpart have the following meanings: 

(1) Facilities-based providers. Those en-
tities that provide broadband services 
over their own facilities or over 
Unbundled Network Elements (UNEs), 
special access lines, and other leased 
lines and wireless channels that the en-
tity obtains from a communications 
service provider and equips as 
broadband. 

(2) Full broadband lines or wireless 
channels. Lines or wireless channels 
with information carrying capability 
in excess of 200 Kbps in both directions 
simultaneously. 

(3) One-way broadband lines or wireless 
channels. Lines or wireless channels 
with information carrying capability 
in excess of 200 Kbps in at least one di-
rection, but not both. 

(4) Own facilities. Lines and wireless 
channels the entity actually owns and 
facilities that it obtained the right to 
use from other entities as dark fiber or 
satellite transponder capacity. 

(b) All commercial and government-
controlled entities, including but not 
limited to common carriers and their 
affiliates (as defined in 47 U.S.C. 153 
(1)), cable television companies, Multi-
channel Multipoint Distribution Serv-
ice (MMDS/MDS) ‘‘wireless cable’’ car-
riers, other fixed wireless providers, 
terrestrial and satellite mobile wire-
less providers, utilities and others, 
which are facilities-based providers and 
are providing at least 250 full or one-
way broadband lines or wireless chan-
nels in a given state, or provide full or 
one-way broadband service to at least 
250 end-user consumers in a given 
state, shall file with the Commission a 
completed FCC Form 477, in accord-
ance with the Commission’s rules and 
the instructions to the FCC Form 477, 
for each state in which they exceed 
this threshold. 

(c) Respondents identified in para-
graph (b) of this section shall file the 
FCC Form 477 on diskette or via e-
mail, as directed in the instructions to 
the FCC Form 477. Upon submission of 
each report, an original certification 
letter (as contained in the instructions 
to FCC Form 477) signed by the respon-
sible official shall be mailed to the 
Commission. 

(d) Respondents may make requests 
for Commission non-disclosure of pro-
vider-specific data contained in FCC 
Form 477 under § 0.459 of this chapter 
by so indicating on Form 477 at the 
time that the subject data are sub-
mitted. The Commission shall make all 
decisions regarding non-disclosure or 
provider-specific information, except 
that the Chief of the Wireline Competi-
tion Bureau may release provider-spe-
cific information to a state commis-
sion provided that the state commis-
sion has protections in place that 
would preclude disclosure of any con-
fidential information. 

(e) Respondents identified in para-
graph (b) of this section shall file a re-
vised version of FCC Form 477 if and 
when they discover a significant error 
in their filed FCC Form 477. For 
counts, a difference amounting to 5 
percent of the filed number is consid-
ered significant. For percentages, a dif-
ference of 5 percentage points is con-
sidered significant. 

(f) Failure to file the FCC Form 477 
in accordance with the Commission’s 
rules and the instructions to the Form 
477 may lead to enforcement action 
pursuant to the Act and any other ap-
plicable law. 

[65 FR 19684, Apr. 12, 2000; 65 FR 24654, Apr. 
27, 2000, as amended at 67 FR 13224, Mar. 21, 
2002]

§ 1.7002 Frequency of reports. 
Entities subject to the provisions of 

§ 1.7001 shall file reports semi-annually. 
Reports shall be filed each year on or 
before March 1st (reporting data about 
the status of their broadband deploy-
ment as of December 31 of the prior 
year) and September 1st (reporting 
data about the status of their 
broadband deployment as of June 31 of 
the current year). Entities becoming 
subject to the provisions of § 1.7001 for 
the first time within a calendar year 
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shall file data for the reporting period 
in which they become eligible and 
semi-annually thereafter. Entities sub-
ject to the provisions of § 1.7001 shall 
make an initial filing of the FCC Form 
477 on May 15, 2000 (reporting data 
about the status of their broadband de-
ployment as of December 31, 1999). 

[65 FR 19684, Apr. 12, 2000; 65 FR 24654, Apr. 
27, 2000]

Subpart W—FCC Registration 
Number

SOURCE: 66 FR 47895, Sept. 14, 2001, unless 
otherwise noted.

§ 1.8001 FCC Registration Number 
(FRN). 

(a) The FCC Registration Number 
(FRN) is a 10-digit unique identifying 
number that is assigned to entities 
doing business with the Commission. 

(b) The FRN is obtained through the 
Commission Registration System 
(CORES) over the Internet at the 
CORES link at <www.fcc.gov> or by fil-
ing FCC Form 160.

§ 1.8002 Obtaining an FRN. 
(a) The FRN must be obtained by 

anyone doing business with the Com-
mission, see 31 U.S.C. 7701(c)(2), includ-
ing but not limited to: 

(1) Anyone required to pay statutory 
charges under subpart G of this part; 

(2) Anyone applying for a license, in-
cluding someone who is exempt from 
paying statutory charges under subpart 
G of this part, see §§ 1.1114 and 1.1162; 

(3) Anyone participating in a spec-
trum auction; 

(4) Anyone holding or obtaining a 
spectrum auction license or loan; and 

(5) Anyone paying statutory charges 
on behalf of another entity or person. 

(b)(1) When registering for an FRN 
through the CORES, an entity’s name, 
entity type, contact name and title, 
address, and taxpayer identifying num-
ber (TIN) must be provided. For indi-
viduals, the TIN is the social security 
number (SSN). 

(2) Information provided when reg-
istering for an FRN must be kept cur-
rent by registrants either by updating 
the information on-line at the CORES 
link at <www.fcc.gov> or by filing FCC 

Form 161 (CORES Update/Change 
Form). 

(c) A business may obtain as many 
FRNs as it deems appropriate for its 
business operations. Each subsidiary 
with a different TIN must obtain a sep-
arate FRN. Multiple FRNs shall not be 
obtained to evade payment of fees or 
other regulatory responsibilities. 

(d) An FRN may be assigned by the 
Commission, which will promptly no-
tify the entity of the assigned FRN. 

[66 FR 47895, Sept. 14, 2001, as amended at 67 
FR 36818, May 28, 2002]

§ 1.8003 Providing the FRN in Commis-
sion Filings. 

The FRN must be provided with any 
filings requiring the payment of statu-
tory charges under subpart G of this 
part, anyone applying for a license, in-
cluding someone who is exempt from 
paying statutory charges under subpart 
G of this part, anyone participating in 
a spectrum auction, making up-front 
payments or deposits in a spectrum 
auction, anyone making a payment on 
an auction loan, anyone making a con-
tribution to the Universal Service 
Fund, and anyone paying a or other 
payment. A list of applications and 
other instances where the FRN is re-
quired will be posted on our Internet 
site and linked to the CORES page.

§ 1.8004 Penalty for Failure to Provide 
the FRN. 

(a) Electronic filing systems for fil-
ings that require the FRN will not ac-
cept a filing without the appropriate 
FRN. If a party seeks to make an elec-
tronic filing and does not have an FRN, 
the system will direct the party to the 
CORES website to obtain an FRN. 

(b) Except as provided in paragraph 
(d) of this section or in other Commis-
sion rules, filings subject to the FRN 
requirement and submitted without an 
FRN will be returned or dismissed. 

(c) Where the Commission has not es-
tablished a filing deadline for an appli-
cation, a missing or invalid FRN on 
such an application may be corrected 
and the application resubmitted. Ex-
cept as provided in paragraph (d) of 
this section or in other Commission 
rules, the date that the resubmitted 
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